
 Page 1 
 

AGENDA 
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 

May 24, 2022 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers | Video Conference 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

 
Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Parks and Open Space Board will be held on Tuesday, May 24, 2022 
at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 and by video conference, at which time the 
following agenda will be discussed. Pursuant to Texas Government Code 551.127, one or more members of the governing body 
may appear via videoconference call. 
 
To join the meeting, please click this URL: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/s/93209577490?pwd=V3hrNENHdGN4WnJHaDlPNzBjZHpsQT09 
and enter your name and email address.  
Join by phone: 1-346-248-7799  
Webinar ID: 932 0957 7490 
Passcode: 777570 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, and not participate via Zoom, you may go to the City’s live 
streaming link at https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting:  
 
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form and 
give to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow a place for 
comments.  
 
Speak Remotely Via Zoom: If you would like to attend a meeting remotely and speak via Zoom, email 
the City Secretary at shenderson@lucastexas.us by 3:30 pm noting the item you wish to speak on and 
noting your attendance will be remote. Please note, any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be 
included at the meeting.  
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit written 
comments regarding a specific agenda item, email the City Secretary at shenderson@lucastexas.us by no 
later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must contain the person’s name, address, phone 
number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments will be made. Any requests received after 3:30 pm 
will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/s/93209577490?pwd=V3hrNENHdGN4WnJHaDlPNzBjZHpsQT09
https://www.lucastexas.us/live-streaming-videos/
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us


 Page 2 
 

Regular Agenda 
 

 
1. Provide updates regarding special events including: 

 
A. Lucas Car Show Recap 
B. Founders Day Recap 
C. Lucas Farmers Market 

(Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak, Parks Board Vice Chair Bill Esposito) 
 
2. Discuss potential landscape projects to be considered for the Governor’s Community 

Achievement Awards Program. (Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak) 
 
3. Consider the donation of a barn quilt from the Friends of Lucas Fire-Rescue and provide 

guidance to the City Manager regarding design preferences and location. (Parks and Open Space 
Board) 

 
4. Consider the Fiscal Year 2022/23 budget recommendations and provide guidance to the City 

Manager. (Parks and Open Space Board) 
 
5. Consider approval of the minutes of the March 22, 2022, Parks and Open Space Board meeting. 

(City Secretary Stacy Henderson) 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on May 19, 
2022. 
 
_____________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons attending 
public meetings at City Hall.  Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972-912-1211 
or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 
 

 
Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
  Parks Board Vice Chair Bill Esposito 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Provide updates regarding special events including: 
 

A. Lucas Car Show Recap 
B. Founders Day Recap 
C. Lucas Farmers Market 

 
Background Information  
 
A. Lucas Car Show Recap 
 

The first Lucas Car Show was held on Saturday, May 7, 2022, at Creekwood United Methodist 
Church. Complete Customs of McKinney and Homes by J. Anthony hosted the special event 
sponsored by the City of Lucas. Donation proceeds were collected at the Lucas Car Show to go 
towards the restoration of the City’s first fire engine known as Ol’ Streaker. The Lucas Car 
Show was a success featuring 102 custom cars including classics, sports, and lifted trucks. The 
winners of the Lucas Car Show were Bob Kirk, Rob Bennett, Andy Cox, Trey Spangler, Steve 
Butler, Chris Duhon, Bob Gant, Buddy Martin, Billy the Plumber, and Lisa Bennett. 

 
B. Founders Day Recap 

 
The City of Lucas held its Founders Day event on Saturday, May 14, 2022, at the Community 
Park. Founders Day featured the Lucas Farmers Market, mini golf, carnival games, stick horse 
rodeo, pony hop derby, Lucas historical exhibit, silent auction and cake walk by the Legacy 4-
H Club. The Founders Day Parade was held at Hart Elementary School with over 70 
participants including the Service Tree Award recipients, Lucas Car Show winners, vehicles, 
tractors, walkers, and horse riders. In-N-Out Burger provided a generous in-kind donation of 
free meals and beverages to the public. Coserv also provided free popcorn and cotton candy. 
Founders Day featured new food vendors such as Smokin’ Joe’s with hot dogs and Texas Ice 
Cream with different options of ice cream. 

  
C. Lucas Farmers Market – Saturday, May 28, 2022, from 8:00 am to 12:00 pm 
 

The Lucas Farmers Market will be open on May 28, 2022. The Farmers Market will have a 
special event for Memorial Day and will include a Picnic in the Park event. 
 
  



Item No. 01 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 
 

 
The following is a comprehensive list of special events scheduled for each farmers market: 
 

May 28 – Memorial Day Picnic in the Park 
June 11 – Ice Cream Crank Off 
June 25 – Children’s Craft Event & Yoga Day at the Market 
July 9 – AgriLife 
July 23 – Chef Demonstration 
August 13 – Back to School Event 
August 27 – TPWD Gun Safety/Hunting Regulations/Game Warden 
September 10 – Fire Rescue Event & 9-11 & Friends 
September 24 – Bee Demo 
October 8 – World Food Day 
October 22 – Pumpkin Decorating 
December 2 – Holiday Market at Founders Day  

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required, this is a discussion only. 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 

Requester: Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss potential landscape projects to be considered for the Governor’s Community 
Achievement Awards Program. 
 
Background Information  
 
In 2016, the City established Keep Lucas Beautiful (KLB) as an affiliate member of Keep Texas 
Beautiful (KTB), whose mission is to inspire and empower Texans to keep communities clean 
and beautiful. The City continues to support KLB by providing resources, developing programs, 
cleanup events, conservation efforts, sustainable practices, beautification and educational 
initiatives. 
 
In March 2022, KTB notified the City that KLB has received first place in Population Category 3 
(5,501-9,000) of the Governor’s Community Achievement Awards (GCAA). The City will also 
receive $130,000 award to construct a landscape project. For more than 30 years, KTB, in 
partnership with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), has awarded the prestigious 
GCAA to Texas communities for their outstanding overall efforts to keep their communities 
beautiful. 
 
Project Implementation: 
 
The GCAA Program, also known as the Landscape Incentive Awards Program, provides funding 
to construct a landscape project on State owned right-of-way that fulfills the winning City’s 
expectations and meets TxDOT’s design, safety, maintenance, and funding requirements. 
TxDOT participates in the program by designing and installing a landscape development project 
along State right-of-way in each winning city. The Travel & Information Division handles 
coordination with KTB, including the annual awards presentation by the Governor’s office. The 
Design Division works with the winning cities and TxDOT districts in the design and 
implementation of the landscape projects. 
 
TxDOT develops the construction plans at no cost to the winning community. The winning 
community has the option to develop the project plans themselves or to hire a consultant if they 
choose, but GCAA funds cannot be used for design services. The design process typically takes 
between six months and a year, with construction activity beginning between 45 to 60 days after 
the Transportation Commission awards the contract. If the project overruns the award amount, 
TxDOT will usually fund the project if it overruns 10% or less. 
 
A TxDOT project manager will be responsible for coordinating the project and keeping it on 
schedule. Generally, the Area Engineer or a Landscape Architect from TxDOT will serve as the 
project manager and point of contact for the department. 
 
 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 

Design Standards: 
 
Many design elements are allowed as part of a GCAA project, but certain design elements are 
discouraged, such as fountains and flagpoles. Gateway monuments cannot be funded through the 
GCAA program. Since the project must be constructed on State right-of-way, “sight distance” 
(drivers must have an unimpaired view of traffic) and safety setbacks must be considered in all 
cases. All fixed objects (large trees, retaining walls, etc.) must be located outside the clear 
recovery zone. Depending on the level of landscape development, TxDOT will in most cases 
require the City to maintain the project following the end of the contract period. The City should 
sign a maintenance agreement before the project can be scheduled. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Governor’s Community Achievement Awards Program Guidelines 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
TxDOT will award the City with $130,000 to construct a landscape project on State right-of-
way. The funds do not expire; however, the GCAA Program recommends projects to be 
implemented within one to two years. 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. This is a discussion only. 
 
 



 

 

 

Governor’s Community 
Achievement Awards 
(GCAA) 

Program Guidelines 
Landscape Architecture Section, Design Division



 

August 2021 

 

 GCAA Program Guidelines 

 

GOVERNOR’S COMMUNITY ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS (GCAA) PROGRAM 
The Governor’s Community Achievement Awards (GCAA) Program, also known as the Landscape Incentive 

Awards Program, was initiated in 1986 by the Texas Transportation Commission as a state-wide annual awards 

program, in cooperation with Keep Texas Beautiful Keep Texas Beautiful Keep Texas Beautiful Keep Texas Beautiful (KTB)(KTB)(KTB)(KTB). Keep Texas Beautiful, a part of the Keep America 

Beautiful system, sponsors a competition each year among its member cities. The competition recognizes 

communities for local environmental improvement through litter prevention, solid waste management and 

recycling, beautification, public education, and litter law enforcement. Nine winning cities are chosen; one for 

each of the population categories. 

Objective 

 To construct a landscape project on State owned right-of-way that fulfills the winning City’s expectations 

and meets TxDOT’s design, safety, maintenance, and funding requirements 

Eligibility       
The department participates in the program by designing and installing a landscape development project along 

State or Federal highway right-of-way in each winning city. Travel & Information Division handles coordination 

with KTB, including the annual awards presentation by the Governor’s office. Design Division works with the 

winning cities and TxDOT districts in the design and implementation of the landscape projects. Project awards 

range from $90,000 for populations of 3,000 or less to $310,000 for populations greater than 180,000; with 

an annual funding amount of $2,000,000 provided by a Commission Minute Order. 

 

Table: Population Categories & Award Amounts 

  Population Category Award Amount 

Up to 3,000 $90,000 

3,001 – 5,500 $110,000 

5,501 – 9,000 $130,000 

9,000 – 15,000 $160,000 

15,001 – 25,000 $180,000 

25,001 – 40,000 $210,000 

40,001 – 65,0000 $250,000 

65,001 – 90,000 $270,000 

90,001 – 180,000 $290,000 

180,001+ $310,000 

 

 



 

August 2021 

 

 GCAA Program Guidelines 

 

Implementation 

The winning community should first form a working committee to serve as a decision-making body during the 

development phase of the project. The committee should also appoint a spokesperson to act as point of 

contact for communications with TxDOT. The committee should then request an initial meeting with 

representatives of TxDOT, generally at the local area or district office. The committee and TxDOT then finalize 

the project location and scope, and TxDOT develops the construction plans at no cost to the winning 

community. The winning community has the option to develop the project plans themselves or to hire a 

consultant if they choose, but GCAA funds cannot be used for design services. 

 

The design process typically takes between six months and a year, with construction activity beginning 

between forty-five to sixty days after the Transportation Commission awards the contract. Local contractors can 

bid on the project, but they must be prequalified through the  TxDOT Construction Division before bidding on a 

project. 

 

If the project overruns the award amount, TxDOT will usually fund the project if it overruns 10% or less. 

Additional overrun will be evaluated on a case by case basis, and may require a redesign of the project. If this 

occurs, the project will then be rescheduled for the next available construction letting. Every effort will be made 

to accurately estimate the cost of the project. No additional project will be constructed to expend unforeseen 

underruns. 

Design Standards 

Many design elements are allowed as part of a GCAA project, but certain design elements are discouraged, 

such as fountains and flagpoles. 

 

Gateway Monuments cannot be funded through this program. 

 

Since the project must be constructed on State Highway right-of-way, “sight distance” (drivers must have an 

unimpaired view of traffic) and safety setbacks must be considered in all cases. All fixed objects (large trees, 

retaining walls, etc.) must be located outside the clear recovery zone. 

 

Every project which has plant material included as a bid item will have provisions for 90 days of maintenance. 

Depending on the level of landscape development, the Department will in most cases require the City to 

maintain the project following the end of the contract period. The City should sign a maintenance agreement 

before the project can be scheduled. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

August 2021 

 

 GCAA Program Guidelines 

 

Program Administration 

A TxDOT project manager will be responsible for coordinating the project and keeping it on schedule. Generally, 

the Area Engineer or a Landscape Architect from TxDOT will serve as the project manager and point of contact 

for the department. 

 

While these GCAA projects are generally developed as “stand alone” projects, they can be developed as part of 

a larger project and can be combined with other funding sources, if approved by the department. 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 
 

 
Requester: Parks and Open Space Board 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the donation of a barn quilt from the Friends of Lucas Fire-Rescue and provide 
guidance to the City Manager regarding design preferences and location. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the April 21, 2022, City Council meeting, Ray McKee, President of the Friends of Lucas Fire-
Rescue, informed the City Council that the Friends of Lucas Fire-Rescue would like to donate a 
4-foot x 4-foot barn quilt to the City of Lucas and the City Council accepted this generous gift.  
It was suggested that the City consider displaying the barn quilt on the pavilion at the 
Community Park.  
 
Mr. McKee requested that the City create the design of the quilt and complete the mounting. The 
City Council directed staff to work with the Parks and Open Space Board to develop a design 
and to determine the location in which to display the barn quilt. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Barn Quilt Examples 
2. Barn Quilt Articles and Trail Map 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff is recommending the design of the barn quilt to include the City of Lucas logo and to 
incorporate red, white and blue into the color scheme. 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required, this is a discussion only. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























Item No. 04 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 
 

 
Requester: Parks and Open Space Board 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the Fiscal Year 2022/23 budget recommendations and provide guidance to the City 
Manager.  
 
Background Information  
 
The City Council will be holding their budget workshop on July 21, 2022. In preparation for the 
budget workshop, a draft budget for fiscal year 2022/23 is attached for your review.   
 
Chapter 1, Article 1.09, Section 1.09.035 (d) of the Code of Ordinances states:  
 

The board should review fees relating the use of parks on an annual basis, making 
recommendations to the city manager or designee for consideration during the budget 
process. The board shall study budget proposals on an annual basis and recommend 
inclusion or exclusion of budget items to the city manager or designee. 

 
Staff has prepared a draft of the Parks Budget for fiscal year 2022/23. The proposed changes in 
the draft budget include: 
 

• Reallocation of three part-time seasonal positions to one full-time public works position 
• Cost increase for parks maintenance contracts 
• Foundation repairs at Kenneth R. Lewis Park 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Draft FY 2022/23 Parks Budget  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
There is no motion required. 



11 ‐GENERAL FUND 2020‐2021 2021‐2022 2021‐2022 2022‐2023

PARKS DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR ORIGINAL AMENDED DRAFT

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6211‐103     SALARIES ‐ NON‐EXMPT TEMP 16,708                  20,160              20,160                  ‐                            Reallocated to FT Public Works position

6211‐112     WORKERS COMP 395                       600                    600                        ‐                            Reallocated to FT Public Works position

6211‐127     MEDICARE 242                       300                    300                        ‐                            Reallocated to FT Public Works position

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 17,345                  21,060              21,060                  ‐                          

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6211‐231     FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4,262                    4,500                 4,500                     4,500                   See Detail Listing

6211‐233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,341                    4,500                 4,500                     4,500                   Small Landscaping Equipment

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 8,603                    9,000                9,000                    9,000                  

PURCHASED SERVICES

6211‐322     CONTRACTS  54,300                  74,500              74,500                  80,000                 Cost Increase for Maintenance

6211‐331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 1,566                    2,000                 2,000                     2,000                  

6211‐333     UTILITIES, WATER 8,698                    10,000              10,000                  10,000                

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 64,563                  86,500              86,500                  92,000                

SPECIAL EVENTS

6211‐444     FOUNDERS DAY 24,287                  30,000              30,000                  30,000                

6211‐445     SERVICE TREE PROGRAM 3,410                    7,000                 7,000                     7,000                  

6211‐446     KEEP LUCAS BEAUTIFUL 2,199                    5,000                 5,000                     5,000                   See Detail Listing

6211‐447     COUNTRY CHRISTMAS 9,448                    10,000              10,000                  10,000                

6211‐448     PARK EVENTS  13,469                  15,000              15,000                  15,000                 See Detail Listing

TOTAL SPECIAL EVENTS 52,812                  67,000              67,000                  67,000                

NON‐CAPITAL OUTLAY

6211‐417     PARK IMPROVEMENTS 46,981                  30,000              30,000                  30,000                 Parks Drainage & Beautification

6211‐418     PARK IMPROVEMENTS‐ USACE ‐                             ‐                         ‐                             ‐                           

TOTAL NON‐ CAPITAL OUTLAY 46,981                  30,000              30,000                  30,000                

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8211‐417     PARK IMPROVEMENTS ‐                             ‐                         ‐                             40,000                 Foundation Repairs at Kenneth R Lewis Park

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐                             ‐                         ‐                             40,000                

TOTAL PARKS  190,303                213,560            213,560                238,000             

DESCRIPTION

Page 1 5/17/2022



Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Parks and Open Space Board Request 

May 24, 2022 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the March 22, 2022, Parks and Open Space Board meeting. 
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. March 22, 2022, Parks and Open Space Board minutes.  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the minutes as submitted.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/amend the minutes of the March 22, 2022, Parks and Open Space 
Board meeting.  



 
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
March 22, 2022  Page 1
   

MINUTES 
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 

March 22, 2022 | 7:00 pm  
Council Chambers | Video Conference  

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas Texas 
 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. A quorum was determined to be present, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance was conducted. Alternate Member Laura Giles served as a voting member due 
to the absence of a regular member.  
 
Parks Board Members Present: 
Chairman David Rhoads 
Vice Chairman Bill Esposito 
Member Kenneth Patterson 
Member Pam Poteete  
Alternate Member Laura Howard  
Alternate Member Laura Giles (voting member)  
 
Parks Board Member Absent:  
Member Christel Parish 
 

Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke  
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak  
Management Analyst Patrick Hubbard  
 
City Council Liaison Present:  
Councilmember Tim Baney  
 
 

Regular Agenda  
 
1. Provide updates regarding upcoming special events including: 
 

A. Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring Cleanup 
B. Lucas Farmers Market 
C. Car Show 
D. Founders Day 

 
Assistant to the City manager Kent Souriyasak gave a presentation providing updates on upcoming 
special events for the Keep Lucas Beautiful Spring Cleanup, Car Show, and Founders Day. 
 
Vice Chairman Bill Esposito gave an update on the upcoming Farmers Market season and events for 
the April market.  
 
There was no action taken on this item, it was for discussion purposes only.  
 
2. Discuss and review the Adopt-a-Park Program including a review of the Adopt-A-

Park Activity Log that was prepared by staff at the Request of the Parks Board and 
the method for disseminating the log.  

 



 
Parks and Open Space Board Meeting 
March 22, 2022  Page 2
   

Management Analyst Patrick Hubbard spoke about the Adopt-a-Park program and presented an 
updated activity log discussing short-term and long-term items needing attention and possible 
budget consideration.  
 
The Parks Board would continue to review their assigned parks and report any items needing 
maintenance or safety concerns.  
 
There was no action on this item, it was for discussion purposes only.   
 
3. Discuss and review the current schedule of fees and the current procedure for the 

reservation of parks facilities including the Pavilion at the Community Park, 
Community Center, and ball fields.  

 
The Parks and Open Space Board reviewed the fee schedule and procedures for park facility 
reservations and made no changes to park rental fees or current policies in place.  
 
There was no motion or action taken on this item.  
 
4. Consider approval of the minutes of the January 25, 2022, Parks and Open Space 

Board meeting.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chairman Esposito, seconded by Mr. Patterson to 

approve the minutes as submitted. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  
 
5. Consider changing the start time of Parks and Open Space Board meetings from 7:00 

pm to 6:30 pm and setting a date to begin the new schedule.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice Chairman Esposito, seconded by Ms. Poteete to change 

meeting start times from 7 pm to 6:30 pm effective May 24, 2022. The motion 
passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote.  

 
6. Adjournment. 

 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Vice Chairman Esposito, seconded by Mr. Patterson to 

adjourn the meeting at 7:38 pm. The motion passed unanimously by 5 to 0 vote.  
 
APPROVE:       ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
David Rhoads, Chairman    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  


	00 - Agenda
	01 - Event Updates
	02 - Discuss GCAA Project
	03 - Consider Barn Quilt Donation Design and Location
	04 - Consider FY 22/23 Park Budget
	05 - Minutes

